

Proposed Revision of the UF Attendance Policy

Prepared by Angela S. Lindner, Associate Provost for Undergraduate Affairs
Fall 2021

Background/Rationale for Change: The current wording of our Attendance policy as relating to Absences (see below) is not clear, and, in recent years, an increasing number of faculty have called to question whether the listed acceptable reasons for an excused absence from class are at the judgement of the faculty member. The current wording of this policy first appeared in the UF Undergraduate Catalog in 1993 (see below) and has been carried forward every year to date. A re-evaluation of the wording of this policy to ensure alignment with the current intent of our policies and practices is warranted. Additional minor changes in wording of other components of the Attendance policy are also proposed for the purposes of streamlining and ensuring consistency with current practices.

Proposed Revisions:

ATTENDANCE POLICIES

<https://catalog.ufl.edu/UGRD/academic-regulations/attendance-policies/#absencestext>

Absences

Students may only participate in classes if they are registered officially or approved to audit with evidence of having paid audit fees. The Office of the University Registrar provides official class rolls to instructors.

Moved (insertion) [2]

Deleted: cannot

Deleted: unless

Students are responsible for satisfying all academic objectives as defined by the instructor. Absences count from the first class meeting.

Acceptable reasons for absence from or failure to engage in class include illness, Title IX-related situations, serious family emergencies, special curricular requirements (e.g., judging trips, field trips, professional conferences), military obligation, severe weather conditions, religious holidays, and participation in official university activities (e.g., music performances, athletic competition, debate) and court-imposed legal obligations (e.g., jury duty or subpoena). Instructors may approve other reasons.

Deleted: In general, a

Deleted: participate

Deleted:

Deleted:

Deleted: such as

Deleted: or

Deleted: . Absences from class for

Deleted: must be excused

Deleted: 0

Deleted: also may be approved

Deleted: in their

If feasible, a student in a situation that allows an excused absence from a class or any required class activity must inform the instructor as early as possible prior to the class.

Students shall be permitted a reasonable amount of time to make up the material or activities covered during absence from class or inability to engage in class activities because of the reasons outlined above.

If a student does not participate in at least one of the first two class meetings of a course or laboratory in which they are registered, and they have not contacted the department to indicate their intent, the student can be dropped from the course. Students must not assume that they will be dropped, however. The department will notify students if they have been dropped from a course or laboratory.

Moved up [2]: Students cannot participate in classes unless they are registered officially or approved to audit with evidence of having paid audit fees. The Office of the University Registrar provides official class rolls to instructors. ¶

The university recognizes the right of the instructor to make attendance mandatory. After due warning, an instructor can prohibit further attendance and subsequently assign a failing grade for excessive absences.

Deleted: individual professor

Deleted: professor

Deleted: s

Religious Holiday

At the University of Florida, students and faculty work together to allow students the opportunity to observe the holy days of their faith. A student should inform the faculty member of the religious observances of their faith that will conflict with class attendance, with tests or examinations, or with other class activities prior to the class or occurrence of that test or activity. The faculty member is then obligated to accommodate that particular student's religious observances. Because students represent a myriad of cultures and many faiths, the University of Florida is not able to assure that scheduled academic activities do not conflict with the holy days of all religious groups. Accordingly, individual students should make their need for an excused absence known in advance of the scheduled activities.

The Florida Board of Education and state law govern university policy regarding observance of religious holidays.

The following guidelines apply:

- Students, upon prior notification to their instructors, shall be excused from class or other scheduled academic activity to observe a religious holy day of their faith.
- Students shall be permitted a reasonable amount of time to make up the material or activities covered in their absence.
- Students shall not be penalized due to absence from class or other scheduled academic activity because of religious observances.

If a faculty member is informed of or is aware that a significant number of students are likely to be absent from class because of a religious observance, the faculty member should not schedule a major exam or other academic event at that time.

A student who is to be excused from class for a religious observance is not required to provide a second party certification of the reason for the absence. Furthermore, a student who believes that they have been unreasonably denied an education benefit due to religious beliefs or practices may seek redress through the student grievance procedure.

Illness

A student who is absent from class or any required class-related activity because of illness should contact their instructor, if feasible, as early as possible prior to the missed class or activity.

Students shall be permitted a reasonable amount of time to make up the material or activities covered in their absence.

Students should contact their college by the deadline to drop a course for medical reasons. Students can petition the **Dean of Students Office** to drop a course for medical reasons. The university's policy regarding **medical excuse** from classes is maintained by the Student Health Care Center.

Twelve-Day Rule

Students who participate in university-sponsored athletic or scholarly activities are permitted to be absent 12 scholastic days per semester without penalty. A scholastic day is any day on which regular class work is scheduled as defined in the approved university calendar.

The student or student's advisor must notify the instructor as early as possible prior to the anticipated absence to allow ample time for accommodations. Instructors must be flexible and not penalize students when re-scheduling during-term and final exams, class assignments, and other required activities and must follow the UF Attendance Policy herein and UF Examination Policies. As noted in the UF Examination Policies, during-term exams should be re-scheduled no later than before the end of the semester, while final exams no later than 90 days after the originally scheduled exam time. However, instructors are encouraged to re-schedule final and during-term exams, assignments, and other activities as soon as possible after the last day of the absence and must not penalize the student in any way.

A group's schedule that requires absence of more than 12 scholastic days should be adjusted so that no student is absent from campus more than 12 scholastic days. Students who previously have been warned in writing by their instructor about the impact of absences on their individual class performance should not incur additional absences, even if they have not been absent 12 scholastic days. The student is responsible to maintain satisfactory academic performance and attendance.

Review List: Provost Leadership Team; Mary Parker, VP Enrollment Management; Steve Pritz, Registrar; Donna Kolb, FAS; Heather White, DSO; UCC (vote); APC (vote)

Deleted: If a

Deleted: es

Deleted: examinations

Deleted: , they

Deleted: s

Moved (insertion) [1]

Moved up [1]: Students shall be permitted a reasonable amount of time to make up the material or activities covered in their absence. ¶

1993-1994 UF Undergraduate Catalog:

REGISTRATION POLICIES

Committee require any college or school to grant a degree by waiving any of these regulations.

Withdrawals

It is each student's responsibility to make every effort to complete the full term at the university. Any student who withdraws after the deadline published in the University Calendar shall be assigned grades of WF (withdrew failing) in all courses and will be subject to suspension and exclusion regulations.

Students on academic probation who withdraw from the university prior to the final date published in the calendar will continue on probation until their grade point deficit is reduced to zero.

Students on University Committee on Student Petitions probation must meet the terms of probation specified by the committee.

Students who withdraw from all courses for medical reasons should contact the Office for Student Services, Division of Student Affairs, for procedural information.

Attendance Policies

Administrative Provisions

Students are not authorized to attend class unless they are officially registered or approved to audit with evidence of having paid audit fees. Following the end of the drop/add period, the Office of the University Registrar provides evidence of proper registration to instructors through distribution of final class rolls and class roll addenda.

Students who do not attend at least one of the first two class meetings of a course or laboratory in which they are registered, and who have not contacted the department which offers the course to indicate their intent, may be dropped from the course if the department chair deems this action necessary to provide space for other students. The department will notify students dropped from courses or laboratories under this provision by posting a notice in the department office. Students may request reinstatement on a space-available basis if documented evidence excusing the absences is presented to the department chair.

NOTE: Students must not assume that they are automatically dropped if they fail to attend the first few days of class.

Attendance Policy

Students are responsible for satisfying the entire range of academic objectives as defined by the instructor. For students whose names appear on the initial class roll, absences count from the first class meeting.

In general, reasons which may be acceptable for absence from class include: illness, serious family emergencies, special curricular requirements (e.g., judging trips, field trips, professional conferences), military obligation, severe weather conditions, religious holidays, and participation in official university sponsored

activities such as music performances, athletic competition, or debate. Absences from class for court-imposed legal obligations (e.g., jury duty or subpoena) must be excused. Other sound reasons may be offered by the student.

Twelve-Day Rule

Students who participate in athletic or extracurricular activities are permitted without penalty 12 scholastic day absences per semester from the university. (A scholastic day is any day on which regular class work is scheduled.) Instructors must be flexible when scheduling exams or other class assignments.

The 12-day rule applies to individual students participating on an athletic or scholastic team, for example. Consequently, a schedule which requires absence of more than 12 days for any group should be adjusted so that no individual student is absent from campus for more than 12 scholastic days.

Students who previously have been warned for absences or unsatisfactory work in any course should not incur additional absences, even if they have not been absent from the university for 12 scholastic days. It is the student's responsibility to maintain satisfactory academic performance and attendance.

Discretionary Review Days

The last two days of classes in the fall and spring semesters may serve as discretionary review days. Instructors may, at their discretion, conduct a final examination review during this time. There are no Discretionary Review days during the summer terms because final examinations are given during regular class periods.

Illness Policy

Students who are absent from classes or examinations because of illness should contact their professors. The student should contact his or her college, by the published deadline, to drop a course for medical reasons. After the college petition deadline, students may petition the University Senate Committee on Student Petitions to drop a course for medical reasons. A student who must withdraw from all courses for medical reasons should contact the Office for Student Services.

Last Week of Classes

No final or comprehensive examinations, projects, or term papers may be scheduled or be assigned during the final week of class. Written papers and/or oral presentations and periodic testing announced at the beginning of the term and in the course syllabus may be collected or presented, provided they do not serve as a final examination. Weekly or daily tests, if scheduled in the syllabus, are permitted; hourly or major exams are not. Take-home examinations assigned as final examinations can be due no earlier than the regularly scheduled final examination. Laboratory sections are exempt from this policy.

Religious Holidays

The Board of Regents policy statement governs university policy regarding observance of religious holidays:

- * Students shall, upon notifying their instructor, be excused from class to observe a religious holy day of their faith.
- * While students will be held responsible for material covered in their absence, each student shall be permitted a reasonable amount of time.
- * No major test, major class event, or major university activity shall be scheduled on a major religious holiday.
- * Professors and university administration shall in no way penalize students who are absent from academic or social activities because of religious observance.

The University of Florida urges faculty and administrators not to schedule exams or major events on evenings or days that will be observed as holy days by a significant number of students. Students who ask to be excused from class for religious reasons will not be required to provide second-party certification.

Grades and Grading Policies

Student grades are permanently recorded in the Office of the University Registrar.

Credit: The word credit as it is used in this catalog refers to one semester hour, generally representing one hour per week of lecture or two or more hours per week of laboratory work.

Passing Grades and Grade Points ⁽¹⁾

A	4.0
B+	3.5
B	3.0
C+	2.5
C	2.0
D+	1.5
D	1.0
S	0.0/Satisfactory

(1) The degree-granting college may require a minimum grade of C on particular courses.

Non-Punitive Grades & Symbols — No Grade Points

W	Withdrew
H	Deferred grade assigned only in a modular course or in exceptional circumstances as approved by the Office of the University Registrar.
N*	No grade reported: not in GPA
I*	Incomplete: not in GPA

Failing Grades — No Grade Points

E	Failure
U	Unsatisfactory
WF	Withdrew failing
NG	No grade reported
I	Incomplete